


AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
February 20, 2024, Regular Meeting 
February 20, 2024, Closed Session  
 
 
 

  

















AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE MARCH 5, 2024, AGENDA 
 
 
 
  





AGENDA ITEM 4: 

PUBLIC COMMENT  

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Public Comment will last up to 1-hour dependent upon the number of speakers. 
 
 
 
  





AGENDA ITEM 5: 

PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON THE PROPOSED ADJUSTMENT 
OF THE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT FOR 1166 OLD EAST RIDGE ROAD FROM 
STEWART SIMMONS TO DEEP GAP  

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
A public hearing has been scheduled to seek citizen input on the adjustment of the fire protection 
district for 1166 Old East Ridge Road from Stewart Simmons to Deep Gap.  The two departments 
agree on the change as it provides the best access and response for the citizens in this area.  
 
Upon completion of the public hearing, Board approval is required to make the adjustment to the 
fire protection districts.   
 
 
  
 
 
 
  













AGENDA ITEM 6: 

PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON THE PROPOSED 2024-2034 
PARKS AND RECREATION MASTER PLAN 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
A public hearing has been scheduled to seek citizen input on the new Parks and Recreation Ten-
Year Master Plan.  A Master Plan adds rating points for Parks and Recreation Trust Fund (PARTF) 
Grants.   
 
At the conclusion of the public hearing, you may adopt the plan as presented, ask for additional 
information, or schedule a work session to discuss further.   
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board. 
 
 
  





































https://www.wataugaschools.org/cms/lib/NC01810403/Centricity/Domain/312/5030%20Community%20Use%20of%20Facilities%20Updated%206.28.21.pdf
https://www.wataugaschools.org/cms/lib/NC01810403/Centricity/Domain/312/5030%20Community%20Use%20of%20Facilities%20Updated%206.28.21.pdf
























https://issuu.com/dbdplanning/docs/npt_final_plan
https://issuu.com/dbdplanning/docs/npt_final_plan
https://npt.dbdplanning.com/
https://blueridgeconservancy.org/northern-peaks-trail


https://issuu.com/dbdplanning/docs/new_howards_knob_mp_draft_09_28_2022


https://www.middleforkgreenway.org/


https://hccog.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/11/Bike-Plan-2014-final-min.pdf










































335353

53 

PUBLIC INPUT - STAKEHOLDERS 

Comments were solicited from several community groups/agencies that might have an interest in the provision of recrea-

tion but are not recreation providers themselves. Those contacted were Boone Area Chamber of Commerce (no response), 

Blowing Rock Chamber of Commerce (responded), Watauga County Economic Development Commission (EDC) 

(responded), Appalachian District Health Department (responded), Watauga County Tourism Development Authority (no 

response), and Blue Ridge Conservancy (responded). 

 

Comments were varied with no overriding theme. Following is a summary, in no particular order: 

• The need to locate programming and/or facilities in the rural communities outside Boone was mentioned several times. 

• The EDC is prioritizing the outdoor economy and Blue Ridge Conservancy (BRC) “is increasingly focusing on public access 

recreation projects.” Although the TDA did not respond, the agency is currently in the process of developing a plan 

called “Imagine Watauga.” Past planning and project funding would indicate that the Imagine Watauga plan will contin-

ue to focus on public access recreation projects. BRC said, “A broader cross section of the community prefers non team 

sport recreation opportunities” leading the organization to recommend the following priorities: completion of the Mid-

dle Fork Greenway, additional river access points, and development of the Northern Peaks State Trail with a trailhead at 

Howard’s Knob Park.  

• While new recreation opportunities are encouraged, “maintenance and upkeep of all county owned and managed prop-

erties has to be factored in,” says BRC.  

• The health department stressed the need to address “barriers to participation” such as unawareness of programs, dis-

tance from facilities, and costs that are prohibitive for low-income persons. Programming that aligns with the interests 

of the Hispanic community was encouraged.  

• The EDC has an economic interest in the recreation department hosting tournaments, which brings numerous people 

into the county spending money on lodging, restaurants, etc.  

• Support for recreation department staff was mentioned as a way to ensure adequate and consistent programming. Sup-

port would include competitive pay, professional development, and sufficient staffing levels.      

 

 

 

53 



335454

54 

The following recommendations are based on the citizen’s survey, community meetings, staff observations, recreation com-

mission comments, facilities inventory, demographic trends, stakeholder comments, the plans of other recreation providers, 

and participation and interest in existing programming. In short, all the other elements of this document culminated in these 

recommendations.  

Cost estimates are current for 2023, but the plan covers a 10-year period, so inflation should be considered when referenc-

ing costs as this plan ages. Some recommendations are general, without precise dimensions, number, features, etc. deter-

mined at this time. Consequently, cost estimates for these items are only approximations. 

 
 
1. Construct outdoor restrooms at Complex 2 & 3 fields. 

In the citizen’s survey, respondents were asked to allocate $100 toward their desired recreation facility(ies). The survey in-
cluded a catch-all category labeled “Facilities,” which received $4,184 (the second highest item). This category included but 
was not limited to “year-round restrooms at all parks, a community and multipurpose space, indoor sports facilities, outdoor 
amphitheater/pavilion, a teen center, rental facilities to hold a camp, and general maintenance.”  
 
Cost estimate =  $200,000 each, based on recent construction elsewhere in the region.  
 
2. Update/revamp Old Cove Creek School outdoor amenities (playground, tennis, basketball courts).  
 
The need for more recreation opportunities outside Boone was mentioned at the community meetings and by the Recrea-
tion Commission. In the citizen’s survey, when asked for their level of support for various actions the County could take re-
garding recreation, 92% of respondents were either somewhat supportive or very supportive of “Fix-up/repair older park 
buildings & facilities”. This action ranked first among the 13 actions listed. Upgrading facilities that already exist outside 
Boone is a logical place to start.  
 
Cost estimate = $100,000 
 
3. Construct an indoor practice/playing field for baseball, softball, football, soccer, etc. for year –long programming.  
   
This recreation feature has been mentioned in many contexts as a priority- current and former directors, the recreation 
commission, and the citizen’s survey. Much frustration has been expressed about the difficulty of scheduling programming in 
the spring and fall when the weather is frequently uncooperative. While expensive, an indoor field can be used for a wide 
variety of sports, thus maximizing the impact of dollars spent. In the citizen’s survey, respondents were asked to allocate 
$100 to desired programs. Youth sports, by far, received the most dollars ($1,996), almost $1,000 more than the next closest 
program (average allocation was $480). The proposed facility would serve youth sports more than any other program. Simi-
larly in another question, respondents were asked to allocate $100 toward their desired recreation facility(s). The survey 
included a catch-all category labeled “Facilities,” which received $4,184 (the second highest item) (average allocation was 
$548). This category included but was not limited to “year-round restrooms at all parks, a community and multipurpose 
space, indoor sports facilities, outdoor amphitheater/pavilion, a teen center, rental facilities to hold a camp, and general 
maintenance.” 
 
Cost estimate = Almost impossible to estimate because of so many variables that are undetermined at this time (cost of 
land, site preparation, number & types of features inside, etc.). Construction alone would probably cost at least $1.0 million 
based on information from various websites on the subject. A rule of thumb is at least $150 per square foot.  
 
 
 

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS & COST ESTIMATES 

54 



335555

55 

Recommendations & Cost Estimates (Cont.) 

 

4. Add/replace fitness equipment in the recreation center. 
 
62% of survey respondents were somewhat supportive or very supportive of 
expanding indoor fitness facilities (only 11% were unsupportive).  
 
Cost estimate = Almost impossible to estimate without identifying at this 
point which pieces of equipment to purchase. Gymstarters.com offers four 
packages (includes both cardio & strength training) ranging from a low of 
eight pieces of equipment for $9,000 to a high of a 35-piece set for $42,000, 
not including shipping and installation.  
 
5. Restore/preserve streambanks near armory, Brookshire Park, and old 
Cove Creek School fields. 
 
In the same way that recreation equipment and infrastructure has to be 
maintained or eventually replaced, ballfields must be protected from erosion. 
Loss of land at the three locations listed above threatens the integrity of 
these parks. Procedures for restoring streambanks and halting erosion are 
available. Cost share funding through the county’s Soil & Water Conservation 
District might be obtainable.   

 
Cost estimate: An approximate price range for 
stream restoration is $100 - $250 per foot. A true 
estimate would depend on several factors, such as 
stream size, the severity of bank erosion, the devia-
tion of the stream from its natural channel, etc. Usu-
ally an engineer must create a design for 
stream restoration and then will estimate the cost 
based on the design. Using a mid-range price of 
$200/foot, following are estimates for each location: 
• Armory  622 feet = $124,400 
• Cove Creek School 825 feet = $165,000 
• Brookshire Park 1,000 feet = $200,000 

An example of a once-eroding streambank that has been repaired. 

 

6. Upgrade tot lot playground with inclusive playground features.  

 

This playground at the recreation complex off State Farm Road 

is a popular feature. Survey respondents each used the facility 

an average of 66 times annually. Inclusive features are those 

that can be used by handicapped children, as well as the non-

handicapped.  

 

Cost estimate: Inclusive playgrounds are more costly than con-

ventional ones, starting at approximately $250,000 based on a 

recent installation in a nearby town. 

 

55 

 

 



335656

56 

Recommendations & Cost Estimates (Cont.) 

6. Hire additional full-time staff for the recreation center (facility/fitness director). 

 

Prior to the opening of the Watauga Community Recreation Center, the full-time staff for Watauga County Parks & Recrea-

tion included: 1) A Director; 2) An Aquatics Director; 3) An Assistant Aquatics Director; 4)An Athletic Director; 5) A Recrea-

tion Specialist 1;  6) A Recreation Specialist 2; 7) A Program Assistant; 8) And, an Administrative Assistant. Post opening, ad-

ditional staff include: 1) Additional Program Assistant for the front desk; 2) Additional Recreation Specialist 1 in athletics; 

and 3) A Part-time Regular Personal Trainer for fitness. With very lim-

ited additions to assist with the WCRC, this is remarkable because the 

center represents a major expansion of new recreation opportunities. 

A dedicated facility director is needed to ensure efficient operation of 

the center and allow the department director to devote sufficient 

attention to other facilities and programs.  

 

Attendance for group fitness at the recreation center has increased 

tremendously, and the fitness classes are driving a sizable portion of 

new and existing memberships. Group fitness is now an integral part 

of the recreation center, and it would grow even more if given addi-

tional attention. Fitness came in third in the survey as one of the most 

desired programs.  

 

Cost estimate: The salary for this combined position would be approx-

imately $45,000 annually.  

 

7. Hire additional full-time staff for the parks & recreation depart-

ment, specifically a camps/special events coordinator. 

  

The department operates seven camp programs and at least five special events annually. Such an offering justifies an em-

ployee dedicated to managing them. Regular programming requires the full attention of current staff, with little time availa-

ble for camps and special events. 

 

Cost estimate: The salary for this 

combined position would be ap-

proximately $45,000 annually.  

 

 

   

56 



335757

57 

9. Establish a disc golf course. 

 

This recreation feature has been mentioned in many contexts as a priority- current and former directors, the recreation 

commission, community meetings, and the citizen’s survey. Disc golf is a very popular sport that ranked second as a desired 

feature in a question from the citizen’s survey. Disc golf, by far, received the most comments at community meetings. 

 

Cost estimate = The following cost estimate discussion comes from the Professional Disc Golf Association, and doesn’t in-

clude the cost of land: 

A barebones installation with light duty baskets, 

natural tees, simple wooden signs, and do-it-

yourself design can be installed for about $350 per 

hole. A full-service community course with heavy 

duty baskets, dual cement tee pads, nice dual tee 

signs, and two sleeves for basket placements on 

each hole could run up to $1000 per hole which in-

cludes a basic design fee on a property with little 

clearing to be done. The per hole expense can run up 

to $2000 with a more deluxe installation and the 

design fee could be $2000-$3000 higher if the 

course requires lots of fairway clearing through 

woods and the designer is involved in supervising 

that process. An added cost might be if the clearing 

is done by professionals versus park staff and volun-

teers. A very nice course can be installed for under 

$25,000 in most places where not much clearing is 

required. A professional course designer is a worthy 

investment to ensure an entertaining, safe, and manageable course. The course design fee can vary quite a bit (an 18-hole 

design can run anywhere from $5000 to $20,000), depending on the complexity of the site, the number and nature of course 

features, and the services required from the designer. 

 

 10. Construct outdoor bocce courts. 

 

This feature is needed to help diversify recreation op-

portunities offered by the County. 

 

Cost estimate: According to bocceboss.com, a regula-

tion-sized court (91 feet by 13 feet) with high-end ma-

terials can cost as much as $24,000. This appears to be 

a high estimate; i.e. a less costly court is possible.   

 

  

 
 
 
 
 

Recommendations & Cost Estimates (Cont.) 

57 



335858

58 

Recommendations & Cost Estimates (Cont.) 

11. Integrate Middle Fork Greenway, Howard’s Knob Park, and outdoor recreation areas (e.g. river access) into Watauga 
County Parks and Recreation programming. 

 
These facilities, while under the management of the department, are not currently utilized for programming. However, they 
could be incorporated into the agendas of camps and special events, for example. Group hikes, canoeing, and picnics are 
three activities that could be carried out at these recreation points.   
Cost estimate: There would be no major direct costs of incorporating these features into programming, though expanding 
programming will require an additional staff person. See recommendation # 7.  
 
 
12. Construct a stand-alone building for camps, meetings, and special events. 

 
The department operates seven camp programs and at least five special events annually. They require spacious facilities 
that can be occupied for an extended period. Competition with other programs and school activities makes scheduling diffi-
cult, with activity space that is less than ideal. A building dedicated to only camps, meetings, and special events would re-
solve this issue and make the programming more effective. 

 
Cost estimate: A 3,461 square foot steel building for a project in Watauga County was recently priced at $519,000 ($150/sf).   
 
 
13. Construct an outdoor sand volleyball court. 
The recreation department offers two adult volleyball pro-
grams and a youth volleyball clinic. All are scheduled in the 
fall and winter, with a total of approximately 220 partici-
pants. The popularity of the programs points to the need 
for an outdoor volleyball court to use in the spring and 
summer. 

 
Cost estimate: Constructing a durable sand volleyball 
court is more complicated and costly than might be evi-
dent at first glance. Properly done, a drainage system 
should be installed. A particular type of sand is necessary, 
and the cost per ton varies widely according to the site’s 
geographic location. Consequently, a total cost estimate 
ranges from a low of $22,000 to a high of $119,000, ac-
cording to the website https://sand-boarding.com/sand-volleyball-court/ .     
 
 
14. Enhance the landscaping at the Watauga Community Recreation Center. 
 
Enhancement could be as minimal as planting a few shrubs or as elaborate as creating major landscaped spaces with trees, 
shrubs, flowers, and sod.  
Cost estimate:  The retail price of most shrubs ranges from $25 to $100. Small tree seedlings can be bought for as little as 
$5, but sizable tree saplings range well over $100. Planting by a professional landscape business would be an additional 
cost.  
 
 
        
 
   

58 

https://sand-boarding.com/sand-volleyball-court/


335959

59 

15. Construct an additional multipurpose room onto the recreation center. 
 

The center’s existing community room is heavily used and also serves as space for fitness classes. An additional community 
room is needed to meet the high demand for multipurpose space.  

 
Cost estimate: Building construction costs at least $150/sq ft., meaning that a 75’ x 50’ addition to the recreation center 
would cost at least $562,500. However, the precise dimensions are undetermined at this time.  
 
16. Continue to support the construction of the Middle Fork Greenway. 
 
Citizen support for greenway construction is overwhelming. In the survey, respondents were asked to allocate $100 toward 
their desired recreation facilities. Greenway (unspecified) received the highest allocation ($5,062), which was almost $3,000 
more than the second most desired facility. In addition, respondents were asked to grade existing facilities (excellent, good, 
average, poor, or failing), including finished sections of the Middle Fork Greenway. 100% of respondents graded the Green-
way as either average, good, or excellent, the only facility to score this high.  
 
Cost estimate: The Middle Fork Greenway is a long-term endeavor that will likely exceed the timeframe of this plan. Costs 

will vary according to negotiations with landowners 
and fluctuations over time in the cost of materials and 
site development. Estimates for future segments 
would be highly speculative and therefore not useful 
for planning purposes. Fundraising from private do-
nors and grant programs is ongoing and focused on 
the most immediately feasible section(s). The comple-
tion of the Middle Fork Greenway project will require 
financial support from both state and county govern-
ments. 
 
17. Continue to implement recommendations in the 
Howard’s Knob Park Master Plan. 
 
In March 2023, the County received a $350,000 grant 
for improvements to Howard’s Knob Park. While a 
significant milestone in the park’s redevelopment, the 
project will only partially address needs identified in 
the master plan. Total cost estimate for all recom-
mendations is $2,581,553 (as of Fall 2022).   
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Recommendations & Cost Estimates (Cont.) 

59 



336060

60 

q 
APPENDIX 

 
 
Complete Citizens Survey 
 
 
School Use Policy 

60 





 

2  

Table of Contents 

Introduction ................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Methodology ................................................................................................................................................. 5 

Respondents Demographical Information ................................................................................................ 6 

Figure 1: Ethnicity/racial Self-identified Responses ............................................................................. 7 

Figure 2: Education Level of Respondents. .......................................................................................... 8 

Figure 3: Resident Living Examination of Respondents ...................................................................... 9 

Figure 4: Additional Residential Make-up of Respondents ................................................................ 10 

Figure 5: Membership of respondents ................................................................................................ 11 

Figure 6: Map of respondents by zip codes ........................................................................................ 12 

Table 1: Percentage make-up of responses by zip code ...................................................................... 12 

Needs Assessment Results .......................................................................................................................... 13 

Desired Watauga County Parks and Recreation Facility Expansion Needs Assessment ........................ 13 

Table 2: All Open-Ended Desired Watauga County Parks and Recreation Facility Expansion Items 14 

Figure 7: Open Ended Facilities Responses Grand Total .................................................................... 14 

Figure 8: Open Ended Desired Watauga County Parks and Recreation Facility Expansion First 

Choice ................................................................................................................................................. 15 

Figure 9: Open Ended Desired Watauga County Parks and Recreation Facility Expansion Second 

Choice ................................................................................................................................................. 16 

Figure 10: Open Ended Facilities Responses Choice 3 ...................................................................... 17 

Figure 11: Open Ended Facilities Responses Choice 4 ....................................................................... 17 

Figure 12: Open Ended Facilities Responses Choice 5 ...................................................................... 18 

Desired Watauga County Parks and Recreation Facility Expansion Needs Assessment Conclusions ... 19 

Desired Watauga County Parks and Recreation Facility Expansion Needs Assessment ........................ 19 

Recommendations ................................................................................................................................... 19 

Desired Watauga County Parks and Recreation Program Expansion Needs Assessment ....................... 21 

Figure 13: Choice 1 desired Watauga County Parks and Recreation program expansion .................. 22 

Figure 14: Choice 2 desired Watauga County Parks and Recreation program expansion .................. 23 

Figure 15: Choice 3 desired Watauga County Parks and Recreation program expansion .................. 24 

Figure 16: Choice 4 desired Watauga County Parks and Recreation program expansion .................. 24 

Figure 17: Choice 5 desired Watauga County Parks and Recreation program expansion .................. 25 

Figure 18: Combination of all responses of desired Watauga County Parks and Recreation program 

expansion ............................................................................................................................................ 21 

Table 3: Open Ended Desired Watauga County Parks and Recreation Program Expansion All 

Reposes ............................................................................................................................................... 22 

















 

10  

 

Figure 4: Additional Residential Make-up of Respondents 

 



 

11  

 

Figure 5: Membership of respondents 

 



 

12  

 

Figure 6: Map of respondents by zip codes 

 

Zip code responses from participants can be seen on the following link. 

https://www.batchgeo.com/map/eb2c35b96517df62f64c99387e2223cb of those responses 84% 

reported living in Watauga County zip codes.  

Table 1: Percentage make-up of responses by zip code 

Watauga County Zip codes Area of 

responses          % 

28607 50% 

28697 9% 

28605 6% 

28604 4% 

28678 4% 

28698 4% 

28618 4% 

28684 2% 

28608 0% 

 

  

https://www.batchgeo.com/map/eb2c35b96517df62f64c99387e2223cb


 

13  

Needs Assessment Results 

This section is broken down into two significant parts: the facility and the program desired 

expansion by respondents. Participants in the online data collection were asked to write in the 

desired facilities they would like to see offered or expanded by Watauga County Parks and 

Recreation. The following responses are presented. Participants in this survey were given the 

option to choose up to five open-ended responses they would like to see implemented by the 

department in the future. They were asked to spend up to $100 total on their choices, thereby, 

ranking their priorities and desires. Their results are presented below with the cumulation of 

dollars spent on each item. The primary investigator sometimes forces agreement on items; the 

following are presented in 1-5th choices and the total combined options. Overall conclusions and 

recommendations from the data are made for each subsection of facilities and then programs.  

Example of the open-ended question asked: 

 

 

Facility Expansion Needs Assessment Desired by All Respondents 

Adding up all the responses the grand totals for the facilities' responses are presented in Table 2 

and the top six items are presented in Figure 7. The response with the most money spent overall 

is a Greenway, with a total of $5,062 spent by 118 respondents. Next is Facilities, with $4,184 

spent by 106 participants, followed by disc golf, where 40 people paid $2,160. Pickleball 

follows, where 41 people spent 1,808. The Recreation Center total was $1,676 spent by 37 

people. The outdoor pool accounted for a total of $1,461 from 32 people. 

 

 



 

14  

Table 2: All Open-Ended Desired Watauga County Parks and Recreation Facility Expansion 

Items  

GRAND Totals 
  

Greenway Total        $ 5,062 Pool Total $ 140 

Facilities Total        $ 4,184 Climbing wall Total $ 135 

Disc Golf Total        $ 2,160 Tot Lot Total $ 130 

Pickleball Total        $ 1,808 Racquetball Total $ 125 

Rec Center Total        $ 1,676 Golf Total $ 100 

Outdoor Pool Total        $ 1,461 Bike Lane Total $ 100 

Splash Pad Total        $ 509 Preservation/ Protection Total $ 75 

Mountain Biking Total        $ 425 Roller Rink Total $ 60 

Tennis Total        $ 395 Stoplight $ 53 

Dog Park Total        $ 391 Basketball Total $ 45 

Hiking Trails Total        $ 338 Football Total $ 45 

Trails Total         $ 348 Fishing Total $ 40 

Schedule Total        $ 283 Softball Total $ 40 

Batting cages Total        $ 285 Parking $ 34 

Skateboard Total        $ 270 Howards Knob improvements $ 33 

River Sports Total        $ 270 Outdoor Bocce $ 20 

Playground Total        $ 269 Bouldering Area $ 20 

Ice Rink Total        $ 265 E-Sports Total $ 20 

Biking Total        $ 265 Roller Rink Total $ 20 

Volleyball Total        $ 185 Speed bumps $ 5 

Soccer Total        $ 170 Average  $ 547.52 

Baseball Total        $ 260 
  

 

Figure 7: Open Ended Facilities Responses Grand Total 

 

$5,062 

$4,184 

$2,160 
$1,808 $1,676 

$1,461 

 $-

 $1,000

 $2,000

 $3,000

 $4,000

 $5,000

 $6,000

Greenway Total Facilities Total Disc Golf Total Pickle Ball Total Rec Center Total Outdoor Pool

Total

A
m

o
u

n
t 

Sp
en

t

Open Ended Desired WCPR Facility Expansion

Grand Total











https://www.ncparks.gov/about-us/grants/parks-and-recreation-trust-fund
https://www.ncparks.gov/about-us/grants/parks-and-recreation-trust-fund










































 

40  

Figure 31: Female Identifying Watauga County Residents Programs Most Wanted. 

These results show that the female identifying respondents are consistent with the population in 

thinking that youth sports/programs and adult sports/programs are the top two most needed 

programs. However, the females differ from the total population on the 3rd and 4th most needed 

programs. Women respondents believe groups/clubs and senior programs are most required, 

whereas the total population believes classes and groups/clubs are the most needed.  

 

Figure 32 below shows the actions for improvement that are strongly supported by female 

identifying respondents. These actions include developing new walking/biking trails that connect 

to existing trails (68%), fix-up/repairing older park buildings and facilities (68%) and purchasing 

land to preserve open space and natural and historical areas (72%).  

 

Figure 32: Actions Strongly Supported by Female  

 

These results show that the women respondents are consistent with the total population in strongly 

supporting the top three actions for improvement: develop new walking/biking trails that connect to 

existing trails, fix up/repair older park buildings and facilities, and purchase land to preserve open space, 

natural and historic areas. However, the top three actions for improvement are the only ones strongly 

supported by women-identifying respondents. When looking at the total population, they strongly support 

several other actions for improvement: develop new walking/biking trails in places that aren’t nearby 

existing trails, purchase land for developing future use, upgrade existing youth/adult athletic fields, 

including new lighting, and expand outdoor fitness facilities. The women-identifying respondents are not 

as supportive of these actions.  

 

Watauga County Parks and Recreation Facility Usage  

Examination of usage by respondents can be difficult for certain areas where staffing is limited; 

as such, participants were asked of their usage of each site below. The average is presented in 

Table 6 below. 

72%

68% 68%

Purchase land to preserve open

spaces. Natural and historic areas

Develop new walking/biking

trails that connect to existing

trails

Fix-up/repair older park buildings

and facilities

Actions Women Strongly Support  



 

41  

Table 6: Watauga County Facility Usage Examination 

Approximately how many times have you visited each Watauga County 

Parks and Recreation facility in the last year?  

  Average Total reported use 

Middle Fork Greenway 83 16344 

Tot Lot 66 11814 

Watauga Recreation Center 44 9194 

Brookshire Park/ Soccer Field  16 2982 

Ted Mackorell Soccer Complex  13 2164 

Complex Ballfield  13 2111 

Rocky Knob Mountain Bike Park 12 1992 

Pickleball court  8 1272 

River Access   - Watauga 6 918 

River Access   - New River 5 798 

Old Cove Creek Gym/Conference Center 4 609 

Howard's Knob Park 2 339 

Tennis court  1 226 

 

  



 

42  

Appendices 

Survey does not come clean from Qualtrics see link for cleaner version. This survey is 

copywritten and is the solo propriety of Rec8er LLC and Erik Rabinowitz without written 

permission is prohibited. https://appstate.az1.qualtrics.com/jfe/form/SV_etDY2ssQnO7L72C  

The Watauga County Parks & Recreation Department is 
interested in knowing what needs best fit the residents of 
Watauga County. As such, your input is sought and 
needed for the county to apply for grant funds. The entire 
process is designed to take no more than 10 minutes. Your 
participation is voluntary and you may withdraw from the 
needs assessment at any time without penalty or loss of 
benefit. No names will be used and individual responses 
will be maintained in confidence. 

 

As a thank you for your time, we will enter your 
completed needs assessment into a drawing for one of 
seven gas cards valued at $20 each to be given away at 
the conclusion of the survey period. Feel free to 
forward the needs assessment link to others that you feel 
would be interested. This will close on February, 28, 
2022. 

Thank you for your time and consideration! 

 Yes, I would like to continue the needs assessment 

 No, I would not like to continue the needs assessment 

https://appstate.az1.qualtrics.com/jfe/form/SV_etDY2ssQnO7L72C


 

43  

 

Part one: 

List any facilities that you think Watauga County Parks and Recreation 
needs (i.e. Greenway expansion). 

 

Part two: 

You are given $100 to spend. Assign how much of this $100 would you spend 
on each suggested facility. 
 

2 

 
Part 1 

   
Part 

       

1st item suggested:      0 
       

       
       

2nd item suggested:      0 
       

       
       

3rd item suggested:      0 
       

       
       

4th item suggested:      0 
       

       
       

5th item suggested:      0 
       

       

Total      0 

 

 
Part one: 

List any program(s) that you think Watauga County Parks and 
Recreation needs (i.e. youth sports). 



 

44  

 
 

Part two: 

You are given $100 to spend. Assign how much of this $100 would you spend 
on each suggested program. 

Part 1 

Part 2 

 
 

1st item suggested: 
 
 

2nd item suggested: 
 
 

3rd item suggested: 
 
 

4th item suggested: 
 
 

5th item suggested: 
 

Total 
 

 

 

 
 

Approximately how many times have you visited each Watauga County 
Parks and Recreation facility in the last year? 

 

 

Watauga Recreation Center 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 



 

45  

 

Complex Ballfields 
 

 

Tennis courts 
 

 

Pickleball courts 
 

 

Tot Lot 
 

 

Middle Fork Greenway 
 
 

Old Cove Creek Gym/Conference Center 
 
 

Howard’s Knob Park 
 

 

Brookshire Park/Soccer Fields 
 

 

Rocky Knob Mountain Bike Park 
 

 

Ted Mackorell Soccer Complex 
 

 

River Access - Watauga 



 

46  

 

River Access - New River 
 

 

 

 

 
 

Using the scale (A=Excellent, B=Good, C=Average, D=Poor and 
E=Failing), please “grade” the offerings of Watauga County Parks and 
Recreation. 

 
  

A 

 
B 

 
C 

 
D 

 
E 

 

Never 
used 

 
N/A 

Unaware of 
existence 

Watauga Recreation Center 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Baseball/softball fields 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tennis courts 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pickleball courts 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tot Lot 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Middle Fork Greenway 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Old Cove Creek Gym 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Howard’s Knob Park 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Brookshire Park/Soccer Fields 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Rocky Knob Mountain Bike Park 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ted Mackorell Soccer Complex 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

River Access - Watauga River         



 

47  

 

 

A B C D

 E 

 

Never 

used N/A 

Unaware of 
existence 

 

River Access - New River 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Using the scale (A=Excellent, B=Good, C=Average, D=Poor and 
E=Failing), please “grade” how these existing Watauga County Parks and 
Recreation facilities/programs meet your household’s or community 
needs. 

 

 

A B C D E 

 

Never 

used N/A 

Unaw 

of 
existe 

 

Paved walking/biking trails (not including bike lanes or sidewalks) 

 

Unpaved hiking/walking trails           Community 

parks             Natural 

areas/open space              Indoor 

fitness/exercise facilities              Indoor 

gyms (basketball, volleyball, pickleball)              Senior 

center               Land 

use planning             Athletic 

programs for children             Athletic 

programs for adults 

Public recreation opportunities (activities that don't require 
membership) 



 

48  

 

 

A B C D E 

 

Never 

used N/A 

Unaw 

of 
existe 

 

Public recreation opportunities (activities that do require 
membership) 

 

Safe biking paths             Fitness 

classes               Swim 

lessons             Special 

Olympics             Summer 

camps              Senior 

games               Arts 

and craft workshops 

 

 

 

 

 

The following are actions that Watauga County could take to improve 
the local Watauga Parks and Recreation system. 

How supportive are you of  ? 

 
Very 

supportive 
Somewhat supportive
 Unsure 

Som 
unsup 

 

Purchase land to preserve open space, natural and historic areas 

 

Purchase land for developing future use             

Fix-up/repair older park buildings & facilities 



 

49  

 

Very 
supportive 

Somewhat supportive
 Unsure 

Som 
unsup 

 

Upgrade existing youth/adult athletic fields, including new lighting 

 

Renovate existing walking/biking trails               

 
Develop new walking/biking trails that connect to existing trails 

 

Develop new walking/biking trails in places that aren’t nearby 
existing trails 

 

Develop new athletic fields               

Develop new nature, history & horticulture facilities             

Develop dog parks facilities (fenced, but no leashes 

required) 

 

Build new spray (water) parks with fountains for use by non-
swimmers 

 

Expand indoor fitness facilities             

Expand outdoor fitness facilities               

Other               

 

 
 

Other               

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Do you currently hold a membership for Watauga County Parks and 
Recreation? 

If yes, select which membership you hold. 



 

50  

 I do not currently hold a membership for Watauga County Parks and Recreation. 

 Individual  

Household  

Senior 

 Youth 

  Dry ticket (day pass) if yes, approximately how many times per year? 
 

 

 

 

 
 

Which of the following best describes you? Select all that apply: 

 

Black or African American  Native American, American Indian, 

   Alaskan Native, Indigenous or First 

Nation 

White or Caucasian Asian (Including Southeast Asian, South 
Asian, East Asian) 

Hispanic, Latina/o/x/e, or 
Chicana/o/x/e 

Arab or Middle Eastern 

 Carribbean  Prefer not to say 
Native Hawaiian or other Pacific  

Islander 
Other race, ethnicity, or origin: 

 

 



5/15/23, 4:46 PM Qualtrics Survey Software 

https://appstate.az1.qualtrics.com/Q/EditSection/Blocks/Ajax/GetSurveyPrintPreview?ContextSurveyID=SV_etDY2ssQnO7L72C&ContextLibraryID… 51/54 

 

 

 

Please indicate your highest level of education: 

 

  Some high school  Bachelor's degree 

 High school graduate  Master’s degree 

  Associate degree  Doctorate degree 

Professional/trade degree Other 

 

 

 

 
 

What is your affiliation with the Watauga County area? Please read 
these responses carefully and check all that apply: 

 

I currently live in Watauga County. I am a business owner in Watauga 

County. 

 I am a full-time student.  I work full-time in Watauga County.  I 

was born in Watauga County.   I work part-time in Watauga County. 

I have lived in Watauga County for more 
than ten years. 

I have returned to live in Watauga County 
after moving away. 

My primary home is in Watauga  
County. 

 
I have a second home in Watauga County. 

I am an active volunteer in Watauga County. 

I have retired to Watauga County. 

 
I (or my family and I) moved to  

Watauga County for 

work/professional reasons. 

I am at least the second generation in my family 
to live in Watauga County. 



5/15/23, 4:46 PM Qualtrics Survey Software 

https://appstate.az1.qualtrics.com/Q/EditSection/Blocks/Ajax/GetSurveyPrintPreview?ContextSurveyID=SV_etDY2ssQnO7L72C&ContextLibraryID… 52/54 

 

 

I have children in the K-12 school system in 
Watauga County. 

My child attends college in Watauga County. 

My parents live in Watauga County. 

 

 

 

 
 

Where is your permanent residence? 

 

 

What is your zipcode? 
 
 

How long have you lived in Watauga County? 
Please reply in whole years. If you lived in 
Watauga County prior and moved back, please 
provide total number of years. 

 

If you are a second home owner, how many 
months out of the year do you call Watauga 
County home? 

 

 

 

 

 

Please answer the following questions for each member of your 
household. If you have less members than provided spaces, leave them 
blank. 

 

Age Gender Identity 

 

Yourself 



5/15/23, 4:46 PM Qualtrics Survey Software 

https://appstate.az1.qualtrics.com/Q/EditSection/Blocks/Ajax/GetSurveyPrintPreview?ContextSurveyID=SV_etDY2ssQnO7L72C&ContextLibraryID… 53/54 

 

 

 

Age Gender Identity 

 

2nd household member 

 

3rd household member 

 

4th household member 

 

5th household member 

 

6th household member 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Are you interested in attending one of the two public forums that will 
discuss the future of Watauga County Parks and Recreation? 

 No, I am not interested in attending one of the public forums. 

 Yes, I am interested in attending one of the public forums. I will include my email address 
below (Note: This response will not be included with your other responses above). 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Are you interested in entering to win one of the seven gas cards valued 
at $20 each? 

 No, I am not interested in entering to win. 



5/15/23, 4:46 PM Qualtrics Survey Software 

https://appstate.az1.qualtrics.com/Q/EditSection/Blocks/Ajax/GetSurveyPrintPreview?ContextSurveyID=SV_etDY2ssQnO7L72C&ContextLibraryID… 54/54 

 

 

 Yes, I am interested in entering to win. I will include my email address below 
(Note: This response will not be included with your other responses above). 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Powered by Qualtrics 

 

 

 

https://www.qualtrics.com/powered-by-qualtrics/?utm_source=internal%2Binitiatives&utm_medium=survey%2Bpowered%2Bby%2Bqualtrics&utm_content=%7B~BrandID~%7D&utm_survey_id=%7B~SurveyID~%7D


AGENDA ITEM 7: 

PARKS AND RECREATION MATTERS 
A. Proposed Watauga Swim Team Contract  

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Keron Poteat, Watauga County Parks and Recreation Director, will present the contract with 
the Watauga Swim Team.  The contract was approved by the Recreation Commission.   
 
Board approval is required to adopt the contract as presented contingent upon County Attorney 
review.    
 
 
  



  

 
231 Complex Drive • Boone, NC 28607 

      Phone. (828) 264-9511 

   Fax. (828) 264-9523 

 

 www.wataugacounty.org 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

Page | 1 

 

 

POOL USE AGREEMENT 

 
This agreement, by and between Watauga County, a body politic of the State of North 

Carolina, and the Watauga Swim Team (WST) is for the purpose of governing the use of the aquatic 

facilities owned and operated by Watauga County. 

 Whereas, the WST is a non-profit organization created for the purpose of providing swim 

instruction and opportunity for competition with other swim teams in the area; and, 

 Whereas, the WST is desirous of using the County facilities for practices and training 

purposes; 

 Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants and terms stated herein, the parties 

hereby agree to the following: 

1. Watauga County shall allow the WST to use the aquatics lap pool at the Watauga Community 

Recreation Center (WCRC) upon such dates and times mutually agreed upon between the 

Watauga County Parks and Recreation (WCPR) Director and the President of the WST. The 

director and the president shall meet as needed to establish schedules for use of the pool and 

lanes. The County reserves the right to adjust this schedule depending upon the 

circumstances and needs in the aquatics portion of the WCRC. 

2. The WST and their coaches are responsible for enforcing all rules pertaining to the team and 

the facility, including but not limited to compliance with all requests from the lifeguards and 

other WCRC staff. The WST shall supervise swimmers at all times, including the front lobby, 

locker rooms, pool deck, and pool. No swimmers may be in the pool before or after practice 

without WST staff supervision. 

3. The WST agrees that it will at all times conduct their activities with full regard to public safety, 

and will observe and abide by all facility rules, regulations, policies, and applicable laws, and 

requests from the County, the aquatics staff, and other County staff. An adult representative 

of the WST shall supervise all members of the WST at all times (for practice purposes) while 

within the WCRC, including the locker rooms. All WST coaches, staff, and volunteers must be 

of good character and standing. 

4. In exchange for the privilege to use the facility, each member of the WST shall be required to 

possess a current WCRC membership or pay a daily fee during the duration of their 

participation with the WST. In the event that a member of the WST opts out of their swim 

team membership or in the event that the County ejects, suspends, or terminates that 

participant, no refund will be issued.  



  

 
231 Complex Drive • Boone, NC 28607 

      Phone. (828) 264-9511 

   Fax. (828) 264-9523 

 

 www.wataugacounty.org 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

Page | 2 

 

5. In addition to the membership requirement, the WST shall pay to the County, a fee of $7,000 

annually. The WST will pay $1,750 quarterly.  Every active WST member must scan in or pay 

the daily fee at the front desk upon each visit. 

6. The WST shall inform the Aquatics Director or Assistant Aquatics Director as soon as possible 

if a practice will be missed or cancelled.  

7. The WST staff shall be responsible for conveying and covering the rules and regulations of the 

facility with swim team members. The Swim Team Orientation and Safety Review (attached), 

shall be covered with all WST members quarterly. 

8. The WST shall make sure that all areas of the WCRC, including the lobby, locker rooms, pool 

deck, benches, etc. are kept in a neat and tidy manner. All members’ personal belongings 

shall be contained in an orderly fashion. No food, drink, or trash may be left in the lobby, 

benches, floor, or pool deck. Noise levels should be kept at normal conversation levels at all 

times, especially in the lobby and locker rooms. 

9. The WST shall ensure that members’ time in the locker rooms is used solely for showering and 

changing clothes. No loitering, phones, or horseplay are permitted. 

10. The WST shall provide their own equipment, and may not use the County equipment without 

the express permission of the Aquatics Director. 

11. Dryland workouts on the pool deck or in other areas of the WST must be approved by the 

Aquatics Director. 

12. All WST members must shower prior to entering the pool. 

13. The County shall provide the WST with a space to store equipment. All equipment within this 

location must be confined to the containers or racks in a neat and orderly fashion. No 

equipment may be left on the pool deck. 

14. Deck space must be kept clear for patrons and lifeguards, including but not limited to: 

kickboards, fins, towels, chairs, and personal belongings. 

15. The WST may not remove lane lines without the permission of the Aquatics Director. 

16. Any special events or meeting requests by the WST must be approved by the Aquatics 

Director. 

17. The WST shall provide to the County current copies of staff’s USA swim safety certifications as 

well as the WST Certificate of Liability. 

18. The Aquatics Director for the County reserves the right to address any areas of concern with 

the WST as they arise. The Aquatics Director and Assistant Aquatics Director or their designee 

reserve the right to eject or otherwise remove any objectionable person or persons from the 

facility. In the event the WST disagrees with a decision or action made, the decision may be 

appealed by the WST President to the WCPR Director. The decision of the WCPR Director shall 

be the final decision in the matter. 



  

 
231 Complex Drive • Boone, NC 28607 

      Phone. (828) 264-9511 

   Fax. (828) 264-9523 

 

 www.wataugacounty.org 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

Page | 3 

 

19. Membership with the WST shall be available to all participants without regard to race, 

religion, national origin, sex, or disability. The WST shall ensure that all of its members and 

members’ parents receive and review the County Swim Team Orientation and Safety Review.  

20. The County shall regulate pool and on deck temperatures. The WST shall not change any of 

these conditions. Additionally, the County reserves the right to interrupt usage of the aquatic 

facility for the safety of the participants. Decisions to interrupt usage shall be the sole 

discretion of the County. 

21. The WST hereby agrees to indemnify, defend (at County’s option), and hold harmless 

Watauga County and each of its officials, officers, agents, staff, volunteers, successors, and 

designees from and against all and any claims, demands, defense costs, liability, expense, or 

damages (direct and indirect) of any kind or nature arising from or in connection with the 

WST’s use and/or occupancy of the facility, or arising out of any act or omission of the WST or 

its affiliates.  

22. The County retains, at all times, the right to control the management of the facility in its sole 

and unfettered discretion and to enforce all rules regarding the management and operation 

thereof. Nothing in this agreement or the act of permitting the usage of the facility to the 

WST shall be interpreted as relinquishing any rights of the County. 

23. The County of the SWT may terminate this agreement for any reason provided that a thirty 

(30) day written notice is provided to the other party of the intent to cancel. No cancellation 

or termination by either party shall relieve the WST for its obligation to pay any and all 

amounts due. 

24. If any occurrence, event, or reason renders fulfillment of this Agreement by the County 

impracticable, the County’s obligations to the WST shall be suspended immediately and the 

County shall not be liable or responsible to the WST for any damage or loss. 

25. In the event of a dispute between the WST and the County regarding the use of this facility or 

the terms of this Agreement, the County and the WST agree to be bound by the decision of 

the WCPR Director.  

26. This Agreement shall be governed by, construed, and enforced in accordance with the laws of 

the State of North Carolina. If any portion of this Agreement is held invalid under any 

applicable statute or rule of law, then only such portion shall be deemed invalid and the 

remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected, thereby and shall remain in full effect and 

force. No waiver or failure to exercise any right, option or privilege under the terms of this 

Agreement on any occasion shall be construed to be a waiver of any other right, option or 

privilege on any other occasion, nor shall any waiver constitute a continuing waiver. No 

waiver shall be binding unless executed in writing by the party making the waiver. 



  

 
231 Complex Drive • Boone, NC 28607 

      Phone. (828) 264-9511 

   Fax. (828) 264-9523 

 

 www.wataugacounty.org 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

Page | 4 

 

27. This document, including the Swim Team Orientation and Safety Review, contains the entire 

Agreement between the WST and the County. No promise, representation, warranty or 

covenant not included in this document has been made or is relied upon by any party. No 

waiver, modification, or amendment of this Agreement shall be in force or in effect unless in 

writing and executed by all parties.  

28. The WST may not assign this Agreement without the express, prior written consent of the 

County.  

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed this Agreement on the _________ day of 

______________ in the year of ___________. 

 

 

WATAUGA COUNTY 

 

By: ______________________________________________ 

Keron Poteat, Director, Watauga County Parks & Recreation 

 

Attest: ___________________________________________ 

Anita Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

 

 

 

WATAUGA SWIM TEAM 

 

By: _______________________________________________ 

Rebecca Riddle, President 

 

Attest: _____________________________________________ 

WST Secretary 





























AGENDA ITEM 7: 

PARKS AND RECREATION MATTERS 
B. Proposed Addition of Recreation Commission Member and Appointments 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Denny Norris, Watauga Recreation Commission Director, will request the Board approve the 
members put forth by the Commission for appointment.  Further, Mr. Norris will request the Board 
approve the addition of one more member to their Board.  The new member would be at-large.   
 
Should the Board wish to approve the recommended members, including the additional member, 
a motion would be required to waive the 1st reading and adopt the members as presented.   
 
  



Memo 
To: Watauga County Board of Commissioners 

From: Keron Poteat, Parks and Recreation Director 

cc: Deron Geouque, County Manager 

Date: 2/28/24 

Re: Parks and Recreation Commission Appointments 

The Recreation Commission has voted on and approved the following individuals for service to the 
commission: 
Name   School   Term Beginning  Term Expiration 

Elin Reuben  Mabel   2024   2027 

Chad Hicks  Cove Creek  2024   2027  

 
Name   At-Large Area  Term Beginning  Term Expiration 
 
Roachel Laney  Town of Boone  2024   2027  
 
 
All are in good standing and recommended by community members. We ask that the Board of 
Commissioners approve these individuals for the Recreation Commission Advisory Board. 



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

SHERIFF’S OFFICE REQUEST FOR FY 2023-2024 MOBILE RADIO AND EMERGENCY 
EQUIPMENT PURCHASE 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Major Kelly Redmon is requesting the Board approve the purchase of eight (8) dual band car radios 
in the amount of $37,360 from Two Way Radio of Carolina, Inc.  In addition, approval is requested 
for the purchase of eight (8) vehicle upfits in the amount of $43,504.64 from Dana Safety Supply 
on the NC Sheriff's Contract.  Adequate funds are available in the FY 2023-2024 budget to cover 
the requested expenses.   
 
Board approval is required to accept the bids from Two Way Radio of Carolina, Inc. in the amount 
of $37,360 and Dana Safety Supply in the amount of $43,504.64. 
 
 
  













































AGENDA ITEM 9: 

EMERGENCY SERVICES MATTERS 
A. Buckeye Knob Proposal 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Will Holt, Emergency Services Director, will request the Board contract with Engineered 
Tower Solutions (ETS) in the amount of $16,000 to conduct the required work as noted in the 
proposal to the tower at Buckeye Knob.  ETS is the state contracted tower company for the VIPER 
system and this is a State-owned tower. Adequate funds have been budgeted in the current fiscal 
year to cover the expense. 
 
Board action is required to contract with Engineered Tower Solutions (ETS) in the amount of 
$16,000. 
  



Watauga County Emergency Services 
184 Hodges Gap Rd, Suite D 

Boone, NC 28607 
Phone 828-264-4235 

Fax 828-265-7617 
 

Fire Marshal ♦ Emergency Management ♦ Communications 
 

February 26, 2024 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
 
CC: Deron Geouque, County Manager 

Anita Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 
 
Subject: Buckeye Tower Quote 
 
 
Board of Commissioners, 
 
Please consider my request to have Engineered Tower Solutions (ETS) conduct the required work as 
noted in the proposal to the tower at Buckeye Knob for a total of $16,000. This work is required as we 
move forward with the radio infrastructure project to see what changes or upgrades will need to be 
made to this existing site for the new hardware loading. ETS is the state contracted tower company for 
the VIPER system and this is a State-owned tower. Funds have been appropriated in the budget for this 
purpose.  
 
 
Respectfully, 
 

 
Will Holt 
ES Director 

 



February 26, 2024

Marty Randall

10-18 Consulting

828-527-2416

marty.randall@1018consulting.com

 

Subject: Buckeye

Mr. Randall,

ETS can perform the services listed below for the prices noted:

Item Price Turnaround Time

Tower & Foundation Mapping $6,000.00 15 business days from NTP

Geotech (consisting of 3 borings) $8,500.00 15 business days from NTP

SA $1,500.00 5 business days from completion of all field reports

TOTAL FEE = $16,000.00 

Best Regards,

Casey Wood

315.214.1616

casey.wood@ets-pllc.com

Proposal Accepted by: _________________________________________________________ Date: _________________

Engineered Tower Solutions, PLLC

Please feel free to call or email with any questions or concerns.  Thank you for the opportunity.

Client Program Manager

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
3227 Wellington Court - Raleigh, NC 27615 o) 919.280.4191  f) 919.435.0631

www.engineeredtowersolutions.com

mailto:marty.randall@1018consulting.com
mailto:casey.wood@ets-pllc.com


Blank Page 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

EMERGENCY SERVICES MATTERS 
B. Microwave Path Study Proposal 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Holt will request the Board approve a contract with Motorola Solutions in the amount of 
$84,000 to confirm all microwave paths work for the proposed simulcast system. Adequate funds 
have been budgeted in the current fiscal year to cover the expense. 
 
Board action is required to approve the contract with Motorola Solutions in the amount of $84,000. 
 
  



Watauga County Emergency Services 
184 Hodges Gap Rd, Suite D 

Boone, NC 28607 
Phone 828-264-4235 

Fax 828-265-7617 
 

Fire Marshal ♦ Emergency Management ♦ Communications 
 

February 26, 2024 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
 
CC: Deron Geouque, County Manager 

Anita Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 
 
Subject: Microwave Path Study 
 
 
Board of Commissioners, 
 
Please consider my request to have Motorola Solutions conduct the required work as noted in the 
proposal to confirm all microwave paths work for the proposed simulcast system for a total of $84,000. 
This study includes not only computer modeling but also physical site inspections to validate any 
potential issues as noted in the modeling. Funds have been appropriated in the budget for this purpose.  
 
 
Respectfully, 
 

 
Will Holt 
ES Director 

 



 

 

QUOTE-2535521
 

 

  

 
 

02/22/2024

 

The design, technical, pricing, and other information (“Information”) furnished with this submission is confidential proprietary information of Motorola Solutions, Inc. or the Motorola Solutions entity providing this quote
(“Motorola”) and is submitted with the restriction that it is to be used for evaluation purposes only. To the fullest extent allowed by applicable law, the Information is not to be disclosed publicly or in any manner to
anyone other than those required to evaluate the Information without the express written permission of Motorola.
MOTOROLA, MOTO, MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS, and the Stylized M Logo are trademarks or registered trademarks of Motorola Trademark Holdings, LLC and are used under license. All other trademarks are the
property of their respective owners. © 2020 Motorola Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

 

WATAUGA COUNTY
EMERGENCY SERVICES



02/22/2024

184 HODGES GAP RD
BOONE, NC 28607 
 
 
  

Dear Will Holt,
 

 

questions to Taylor Rawls at Taylor.Rawls@motorolasolutions.com.
 
We thank you for the opportunity to provide you with premier communications and look forward to your review and feedback
regarding this quote. 
 
 
Sincerely,
 
 
 
Taylor Rawls 

 

 

 

QUOTE-2535521
 

WATAUGA COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES

Motorola Solutions is pleased to present WATAUGA COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES with this quote for quality communications
equipment and services.  The development of this quote provided us the opportunity to evaluate your requirements and
propose a solution to best fulfill your communications needs.

This information is provided to assist you in your evaluation process. Our goal is to provide WATAUGA COUNTY
EMERGENCY SERVICES with the best products and services available in the communications industry. Please direct any



 

Billing Address:

 
184 HODGES GAP RD 
BOONE, NC 28607 
US 
 
 

 

Quote Date:02/22/2024
Expiration Date:05/22/2024
Quote Created By:
Taylor Rawls
Taylor.Rawls@
motorolasolutions.com

End Customer:

Will Holt 
Will.Holt@watgov.org 
 

 

  

 

 

Line #
 

Item Number
 

Description
 

Qty
 

List Price
 

Sale Price
 

Ext. Sale Price
 

 

 

 

Product Services
      

 

 

1
 

LSV01Q00387A
 

ASTRO TECHNICAL
ASSISTANCE Path surveys
and report (7 paths)
 

1
 

$84,000.00
 

$84,000.00
 

$84,000.00
 

 

Grand Total
 

$84,000.00(USD)
 

 

Notes:
 

●
 

 

 

Unless otherwise noted, this quote excludes sales tax or other applicable taxes (such as Goods and Services Tax,
sales tax, Value Added Tax and other taxes of a similar nature). Any tax the customer is subject to will be added to
invoices.
 

 

 

QUOTE-2535521
 

 

Any sales transaction following Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the terms and conditions of the valid and executed written contract between Customer and Motorola (the ""Underlying
Agreement"") that authorizes Customer to purchase equipment and/or services or license software (collectively ""Products""). If no Underlying Agreement exists between Motorola and Customer, then
Motorola's Standard Terms of Use and Motorola's Standard Terms and Conditions of Sales and Supply shall govern the purchase of the Products.
 Motorola Solutions, Inc.: 500 West Monroe, United States - 60661 ~ #: 36-1115800  
 

Page 3
 

WATAUGA COUNTY ES

WATAUGA COUNTY
EMERGENCY SERVICES





AGENDA ITEM 9: 

EMERGENCY SERVICES MATTERS 
C. Public Hearing Request for Ordinance Update 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Holt will request the Board schedule a public hearing to consider changing the Watauga 
County Building Code Ordinance as highlighted below: 
 
Section 1-2.1 Fire Code Adopted 
On July 1, 1991, or other date established by the North Carolina Building Code Council, the 
Standard Fire Prevention Code – 1988 Edition and all appendices therein as adopted by the 
Building Code Council and as amended …  
 
A public hearing will need to be scheduled to seek citizen input on the proposed change to the 
Watauga County Building Code Ordinance.  
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board.   
 
 
 
  



Watauga County Emergency Services 
184 Hodges Gap Rd, Suite D 

Boone, NC 28607 
Phone 828-264-4235 

Fax 828-265-7617 
 

Fire Marshal ♦ Emergency Management ♦ Communications 
 

February 26, 2024 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
 
CC: Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 Jason Walker, Planning Director 
 Shane Garland, Fire Marshal 

Anita Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 
 
Subject: Ordinance Update 
 
 
Board of Commissioners, 
 
Please consider my request to change the Watauga County Building Code Ordinance as highlighted 
below: 
 
Section 1-2.1 Fire Code Adopted 

On July 1, 1991, or other date established by the North Carolina Building Code Council, the Standard Fire 
Prevention Code – 1988 Edition and all appendices therein as adopted by the Building Code Council and 
as amended …  
 
It is requested that the Board sets a public hearing to receive public comment and approve this change. 
 
Respectfully, 
 

 
Will Holt 
ES Director 

 



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Budget Amendments 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Deron Geouque, Finance Director, will review budget amendments as included in your packet. 
 
Board approval is requested. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



MEMORANDUM

TO: Deron T. Geouque, County Manager

FROM: Misty Watson, CPA

SUBJECT: Budget Amendments 

DATE:

Description Debit Credit

213991 399101 Fund Balance Appropriation 1,686,964   

219800 498050 Transfer to VC School Fund 1,686,964 

503980 398121 Transfer from Capital Projects Fund 1,686,964   

506120 458000 Capital outlay 1,686,964 

To move remaining Valle Crucis School CIP to the Valle Crucis School Project Fund

103300 334500 Public Safety OSBM grant 10,650         

104310 444000 Service and maitnenance contracts 10,650       

505839 384000 Donations 115,000      

506120 458000 Capital outlay building 115,000    

103991 399100 Fund Balance 8,340,715   

109800 498021 Transfer to Capital Projects Fund 8,340,715 

213980 398100 Transfer from General Fund 8,340,715   

219930 449211 Future County Buildings 8,340,715 

104920 463000 General appropriation 52,300       

213991 399101 Fund Balance Appropriation 52,300         

219800 498010 Transfer to General Fund 52,300       

103980 398121 Transfer from Capital Projects Fund 52,300         

WATAUGA COUNTY

FINANCE OFFICE

814 West King St., Suite 216, Boone, NC  28607     Phone (828) 265-8007

February 23, 2024

The following budget amendment requires the approval of the Watauga County Board of

Commissioners. Board approval is requested. 

Account #

Per Board action taken 2/20/24; to transfer funds to Capital Reserve from unassigned fund balance 

from the FY 2022 audit.

To recognize a grant received for the Valle Crucis School

To recognize a grant received from OSBM for Law Enforcement



105911 471000 Lottery funds 944,932      

105911 470001 Carpet and tile 45,000       

105911 470005 Cafeteria equipment 65,000       

105911 470037 Gym floors 45,000       

105911 470019 Door/Window replacements 20,000       

105911 470043 Roof renovations 100,000    

105911 470041 Pavement resurface 80,000       

105911 470017 Electrical upgrades 489,932    

105911 470066 VOIP installation 100,000    

105911 Central food storage upgrade/renovation 25,000       

105911 470034 Security cameras 25,000       

105911 470029 Roof replacements - GV, PK, HP 2,000,000 

105911 470036 HVAC/sewer pumps 25,000       

105911 Playground updates/renovations 30,000       

Weight room upgrades 95,000       

105911 470069 1:1 devices 300,000    

103980 398121 Transfer from Capital Projects Fund 2,500,000   

213991 399101 Fund Balance Appropriation 2,500,000   

219800 498010 Transfer to General Fund 2,500,000 

Per Board action taken 12/15/22; to transfer funds from Capital Reserve for EDC funding for the UNC 

School of Gov't Development Finance Initiative Proposal for affordable/workforce housing

Per Board action taken 1/16/24; to recognize lottery funds requested and approved.

Per Board action taken 1/16/24; to transfer funds for capital needs from the Capital Reserve for the 

School System.



Blank Page 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
B. Boards and Commissions 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Tourism Development Authority (TDA) 
 
Ms. Missy Harrill was appointed in July 2023 to fill an unexpired term on the TDA Board.  That 
term expired at the end of February.  The TDA recommends appointing Ms. Harrill, who is willing 
to continue to serve, to a full three (3) year term.  This is a first reading; however, the TDA Board 
requests the Board consider waiving the second reading and making the appointment at this 
meeting. 
 
 
 
 
  



 

 
 

 
TO:   Watauga County Board of Commissioners  
   Deron Geouque, Watauga County Manager 
    
FROM:   Wright Tilley, Executive Director 
 
RE:   TDA Board Appointments 
 
DATE:    2/27/2024 

 
 
In July of 2023, the Watauga County Commissioners appointed Missy Harrill to fill the unexpired 
term of Jim Neustadt on the TDA board.  That original term held by Jim Neustadt is expiring at 
the end of February. 
 
Missy has been an outstanding board member so far.  I am writing to request that the Watauga 
County Board of Commissioners consider appointing Missy Harrill to a full 3-year term on the 
TDA board. 
 
This board appointment must be occupied by someone that collects the occupancy tax in 
Watauga County.  Missy meets that requirement through Foscoe Rentals.  In fact, they are one 
of the larger short-term rental management companies collecting occupancy tax in the county. 
 
Thank you for your consideration of this requested appointment to the TDA board. 







AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
C. Announcements 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 11: 

BREAK 
 
  



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

CLOSED SESSION 
Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 


	Tentative Agenda and Meeting Notice
	Approval of Minutes
	Approval of the March 5, 2024, Agenda
	Public Comment
	Public Hearing to Allow Citizen Comment on the Proposed Adjustment of the Fire Protection District for 1166 Old East Ridge Road from Stewart Simmons to Deep Gap
	Public Hearing to Allow Citizen Comment on the Proposed 2024-2034 Parks and Recreation Master Plan
	Parks and Recreation Matters
	A.  Proposed Watauga Swim Team Contract
	B.  Proposed Addition of Recreation Commission Member and Appointments

	Sheriff’s Office Request for FY 2023-2024 Mobile Radio and Emergency Equipment Purchase
	Emergency Services Matters
	A.  Buckeye Knob Proposal
	B.  Microwave Path Study Proposal
	C.  Public Hearing Request for Ordinance Update

	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	A.  Budget Amendments
	B.  Boards and Commissions
	C.  Announcements

	Break
	Closed Session



